Stanley County School District #57-1 Unofficial School Board Minutes

The Stanley County School District, #57-1, Board of Education met in regular session February 8, 2023, at 6:00 P.M., in the Parkview Auditorium with Board members DeLynn Hanson, Chris Fosheim, Shaun Cronin, Mitchell Kleinsasser, and Tyler Green present. Others in attendance were Superintendent Dan Baldwin and Business Manager Tate Gabriel. Visitors were Allison Bender, Kim Doherty, Curt Littau, Melody Littau, Kristie Maher, Shirley Swanson, Jen Milliken, Terri Mehlhaff, and Ashley Keil.

President Hanson called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M.

Hanson led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Fosheim moved to amend the agenda as published to include item 18A, resignations, seconded by Green. All in favor. Motion carried.

Conflict of interest declaration - none.

Kleinsasser moved to approve the consent agenda as published, seconded by Cronin.

- Approve the Board meeting minutes for January 4, 2023, Special Board Meeting and January 11, 2023, Regular Board Meeting.
- Approve bill listing for February 8, 2023.
- Approve Imprest expense;
- Approve financials for January 2023.

# All in favor. Motion carried.

# Bill listing for February 2023:

GENERAL FUND		
AVERA MEDICAL GROUP - AVERA OCCUPATIONAL MEDICINE - SF	Professional Services	35.18
BESTWESTERN PLUS LAKEVIEW	Gymnastic Lodging	427.96
CAPITAL JOURNAL	Publication of Minutes	682.75
CENTURY BUSINESS PRODUCTS	Banner Paper	1,121.02
COCA COLA BOTTLING CO.	Concessions	2,197.10
COLE PAPERS	Custodial Supplies	1,989.41
COMFORT SUITES UNIVERSITY	AFNR PD Lodging	75.00
COMMTECH	Technology Supplies	90.79
CORE EDUCATIONAL COOPERATIVE	Online Courses	650.00
COWBOY COUNTRY STORES	Concessions	353.03
DK HARDWARE	Maintenance Supplies	355.33
DON'S SINCLAIR	Concessions	1,581.93
FORT PIERRE, CITY OF	Utilities	116.89
GALE'S GAS SERVICE	Utilities - Gas	752.40
GOLDEN WEST TELECOMMUNICATIONS	Communications	119.60
GRAINGER	Maintenance Supplies	182.97

INNOVATIVE OFFICE SOLUTIONS	Library Supplies	1,114.42
JACOBS-BOWMAN, KIMBERLY	Region Contest Accompanist	130.00
JOHNSON CONTROLS	PV HVAC Repair	1,576.03
JW PEPPER	Choir Supplies	615.97
LYNN'S DAKOTAMART	Maintenance Supplies	563.59
LYNN, JACKSON, SHULTZ & LEBRUN, P.C.	Professional Services	1,564.11
MENARDS PIERRE	Classroom Supplies	1,928.32
MIDCONTINENT COMMUNICATIONS	Communications	469.14
MONTANA DAKOTA UTILITIES	Utilities	4,252.52
NAPA CENTRAL	Maintenance Supplies	245.36
NORTHWEST PIPE FITTINGS, INC., OF HURON	Maintenance Supplies	112.15
PIZZA RANCH	Concessions	272.86
REGION MUSIC CONTEST,	Region Music Contest Entry Fee	84.00
REINHART FOOD SERVICE, LLC	Concessions	4,215.67
RIVER BOTTOM SANITATION	Garbage Services	900.00
RIVER CITY TRANSIT	Transportation	153.00
SCHOOL SPECIALTY, INC.	Technology Supplies	577.26
SD COUNSELING ASSOCIATION	2023 SDCA Spring Conference	395.00
SD DEPT. OF CORRECTIONS	Maintenance/Kitchen Services	388.31
SIOUX NATION OF FORT PIERRE	25 Gallon Tank with Pump	500.00
STANLEY COUNTY SCHOOL	JANUARY '23 IMPREST	12,334.65
TITAN MACHINERY	Skid Loader Parts	803.15
VERIZON WIRELESS	Wireless	40.01
WEST CENTRAL ELECTRIC	Utilities	107.19
WR/LJ RURAL WATER	Utilities	6.00
Fund Number 10		44,080.07
CAPITAL OUTLAY CENTURY BUSINESS PRODUCTS	Print Management	1,076.01
SCHOLASTIC LIBRARY PUB.	Library Books	356.89
SWEETWATER	Technology Supplies	1,596.00
VANTAGE FINANCIAL, LLC	Telephone Lease	780.00
Fund Number 21		3,808.90
SPECIAL EDUCATION 22X	Professional Services	2,415.18
22X	Professional Services	575.00
LYNN'S DAKOTAMART	Life Skills	108.23
MCGRAW-HILL, LLC	Reading Mastery	11,377.16
	5	

SCHOOL SPECIALTY, INC.	Classroom Supplies	73.64
Fund Number 22		14,549.21
FOOD SERVICE CHILD AND ADULT NUTRITION	Commodities	1,104.85
EARTHGRAINS BAKING COMPANIES INC	Purchase Food	180.00
PRAIRIE FARMS	Purchase Food	1,044.89
REINHART FOOD SERVICE, LLC	Credit Memo	7,285.40
RIVER CITY TRANSIT	Transportation	153.00
SD DEPT. OF CORRECTIONS	Maintenance/Kitchen Services	204.57
SERVALL UNIFORM & LINEN	Professional Services	230.75
Fund Number 51 Checking Account ID 1 AGENCY FUND		10,203.46 72,641.64
A & J SCREENING	GBB Tournament T-Shirts	1,100.00
ALL AROUND GRAPHICS	Jacket Embroidery	24.00
BP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS	ACCT JG402 1/21/23	2,049.33
BRUSHBREAKER, DAVE	BBB OFFICIAL 2/2/23	230.06
CF PROMO	Travel Gear	7,957.50
DOZARK, KRISTOPHER	BDC WRESTLING OFFICIAL	300.00
ELITE SPORTSWEAR	Gymnastic Jackets	513.79
ESTES, RJ	BBB OFFICIAL 2/2/23	179.06
FROST, TRAVIS	BDC TABLE WORKER	100.00
FROST, TREY	BDC TABLE WORKER	100.00
HANSON, DELYNN	BDC TOURN DIRECTOR	300.00
HARROWA, WYATT	BDC TABLE WORKER	100.00
HUFFMAN, CURTIS	BDC WRESTLING OFFICIAL	504.00
KOLDA, BLAKE	BDC TABLE WORKER	100.00
LARSON, KIMBERLY	BDC WALL CHARTS	130.00
LEPKOWSKI, ANDREW	BBB OFFICIAL 2/2/23	125.00
LYNN'S DAKOTAMART	NHS Induction	373.08
MENARDS PIERRE	Greenhouse Supplies	299.08
MONCUR, DEAN	BDC WRESTLING OFFICIAL	486.66
OAHE YMCA	Cross Country Training Fee	56.00
PIZZA RANCH	Elementary Test Supplies	371.55
ROGGOW, JASON	BDC TOURNAMENT ASSISTANT DIRECTOR	150.00
ROUNDS, STEVE	BDC WRESTLING OFFICIAL	300.00
SLAMA, RANDY	BDC TABLE WORKER	100.00
STOVER, BRADLEY	BDC TABLE WORKER	100.00

THOMPSON, CASEY	BDC WRESTLING OFFICIAL	475.44
VANDENHEMEL, SCOTT	BDC ANNOUNCER	130.00
Fund Number 17 PRIVATE PURPOSE FUNDS		16,654.55
CHASE, LANA	Dual Credit Fall 2022-2023	289.98
GABRIEL, JEANINE	Dual Credit Fall 2022-2023	144.99
GARCIA, JOSE OR ARGELIA	Dual Credit Fall 2022-2023	144.99
HAND, MICHELLE	Dual Credit Fall 2022-2023	144.99
HEEZEN, ROXANNE	Dual Credit Fall 2022-2023	144.99
HUEBNER, TARA	Dual Credit Fall 2022-2023	277.63
NICKELS, TRACI	Dual Credit Fall 2022-2023	144.99
SARGENT, TRISH	Dual Credit Fall 2022-2023	289.98
SCHILLING, CHRISTINA	Dual Credit Fall 2022-2023	289.98
SCHMITT, TRACY	Dual Credit Fall 2022-2023	289.98
SCOTT, BECCI	Dual Credit Fall 2022-2023	144.99
STOESER, CASSIE	Dual Credit Fall 2022-2023	144.99
WYLY, ANITA	Dual Credit Fall 2022-2023	289.98
Fund Number 76 Checking Account ID 2		2,742.46 19,397.01

# Financials for January 2023.

	General Fund	Capital Outlay	Special Ed	Pension
Balance 1-1-2023	-468,749.19	4,183,469.70	1,609,904.96	0.00
County Revenue	40,277.30	30,462.79	17,891.56	0.00
Local Rev & Bank Int	13,295.29	471.29	176.63	0.00
State/Fed Revenue	93,317.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Accounts Payable	-83,670.97	-36,619.35	-2,842.58	0.00
Payroll	-301,527.48	0.00	-53,196.21	0.00
Misc	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Balance 1-31-2023	-707,058.05	4,177,784.43	1,571,934.36	0.00
	Impact Aid	Food Service	Enterprise Fund	Fiduciary Funds
Balance 1-1-2023	2,898,302.04	23,243.60	31,292.85	146,575.82
County Revenue	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Local Rev & Bank Int	335.35	9,621.26	0.00	24,188.32
State/Fed Revenue	0.00	4,688.11	0.00	0.00
Accounts Payable	0.00	-5,934.34	0.00	-16,582.56
Payroll	0.00	-8,215.14	0.00	0.00
Misc	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Balance 1-31-2023	2,898,637.39	23,403.49	31,292.85	154,181.58

# Detail is available at the Business Office in Parkview Auditorium

# Public comment - none.

Student report - none.

Kristie Maher updated the board on the GOLD Program.

Green moved to approve Administrative Application waivers for Sarah Beck and Keely Bracelin, seconded by Fosheim. All in favor. Motion carried.

Fosheim moved to adopt Policy ACAA: Sexual Harassment, as presented, seconded by Cronin. Baldwin recommended tabling the policies. All voted nay. Motion denied.

Kleinsasser moved to table items 10-13 to March 2023, seconded by Cronin. All in favor. Motion carried. Fosheim moved to adopt Policy GCA: Professional staff positions, as presented, seconded by Kleinsasser. All voted in favor. Motion carried.

First reading of Policy ACAA-R(1): Sexual Harassment and Policy KL: Complaint Against School Employee.

Kleinsasser left the meeting at 6:25 P.M.

Terri Mehlhaff, Elementary Principal, updated the board briefly on the Elementary. Mehlhaff congratulated Cindy Kindle on receiving January Elementary Staff of the Month. Mehlhaff also congratulated Jen Milliken and Shirley Swanson and the One Act case and crew for their performance at State and to the individuals who earned awards, the second grade as they had the greatest percentage of students improve on their NWEA tests in Reading and Math, and the first grade as their students had the most growth in Reading and Math on their NWEA tests. Kindergarten Round-Up will be Thursday, March 23<sup>rd</sup> and Friday, March 24<sup>th</sup>. Curt Littau, MS/HS Principal congratulated Sara Kampa for being named January Staff of the Month and Sorrin Studenberg, Hennessy Swallow, Remi Masteller, Valdyn Wessels, Colton Brady, Rachel Nemec, and Nathan Taylor for being named January Students of the Month. Littau also congratulated One Act Play and the six outstanding actor awards: Riley Runge, Abby Wyly, Cloey Voigt, Jackson Robbenolt, Ryder Roseland, and Cadence Hand, four gymnasts qualified for State: Addy Deal, Rachel Nemec, Timber Hanson, and Elena Hebb. Melody Littau, Special Education Director, gave a brief update to the board on the happenings of Special Education. Superintendent Baldwin gave a brief update on the Legislation and recognized the Board for School Board recognition week which is February 20-24 and gave each Board member a certificate.

Kleinsasser rejoined the meeting at 6:39 P.M.

Fosheim moved to declare the Board in Executive Session for SDCL 125-2 (1) Personnel, (2) Student Matters, (4) Negotiations at 6:39 P.M., seconded by Cronin. All voted in favor. Motion carried.

Hanson declared board back in open session at 7:32 P.M.

Kleinsasser moved to approve Business Manager to offer Letter of Intents to Sydney Roberts, Special Education Paraprofessional, \$16.00 per hour, and Layne Meyers, Custodian, \$16.00 per hour for the 2022-2023 school year, seconded by Fosheim. All in favor. Motion carried.

Cronin moved to accept the resignation of Shirley Swanson as Middle School Social Studies teacher effective at the end of the 2022-2023 school year, seconded by Fosheim. Hanson thanked Swanson for her years of service and taking good care of all the children. All in favor. Motion carried.

Cronin moved to approve Laura Alleman as a volunteer for the elementary school, seconded by Green. All in favor. Motion carried.

Green moved to approve Open Enrollment Application #'s 572223043 and 572223044, seconded by Kleinsasser. All in favor. Motion carried.

Kleinsasser moved to declare the Board in Executive Session for SDCL 125-2 (1) Personnel at 7:36 P.M., seconded by Cronin. All voted in favor. Motion carried.

Hanson declared board back in open session at 8:24 P.M.

Cronin moved to adjourn meeting at 8:24, seconded by Fosheim. All in favor. Motion carried.

DeLynn Hanson, President

Tate Gabriel, Business Manager

Approved

#### **Regulation ACAA-R(1): SEXUAL HARASSMENT - REGULATION**

Status: DRAFT - 1st Reading

Original Adopted Date: Pending | Last Reviewed Date: 02/02/2023

#### SECTION 1 - Policy Statement

The District is committed to a school environment which is free from sexual harassment and conducive to all students' educational opportunities. Sexual harassment can inhibit a student's educational opportunities and an employee's work. Sexual harassment of students attending school in the District or students from other schools who are at a District activity, and sexual harassment of school employees, school volunteers, parents, guests, visitors and vendors of the District shall also not be tolerated and is strictly prohibited.

All students, school employees, school volunteers, parents, guests, visitors and vendors shall conduct themselves in a civil and responsible manner and in a manner consistent with school policies. This policy prohibiting sexual harassment shall apply to all students, school employees, school volunteers, parents, guests, visitors and vendors while on school property, while attending or participating in school activities, on school-owned property or on non-school property, while in any school-owned or leased vehicle, while at a school bus stop, or when in a private vehicle located on school property during school or during school activities.

The District's policy prohibiting sexual harassment is ACAA. This regulation supplements that policy, and the policy and these regulations are consistent with the federal regulations set forth in 34 CFR Part 106.

Students who violate the policy prohibiting sexual harassment shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including expulsion. Employees who violate this policy shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. School volunteers, parents, guests, visitors, and vendors who violate this policy may be prohibited from being on school property.

Complaints based on nondiscrimination in federal programs, complaint against school employees, and complaints related to bullying are addressed through other school district policies and not through the policy prohibiting sexual harassment and this regulation.

#### **SECTION 2 - Definitions**

- A. <u>Sexual Harassment</u>. Federal law (34 CFR § 106.30) defines "sexual harassment" as conduct on the basis of sex that satisfies one or more of the following:
  - 1. An employee of the recipient conditioning the provision of an aid, benefit, or service of the recipient on an individual's participation in unwelcome sexual conduct;
  - 2. Unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to the recipient's education program or activity; or
  - "Sexual assault" as defined in 20 U.S.C. 1092(f)(6)(A)(v), "dating violence" as defined in 34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(10), "domestic violence" as defined in 34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(8), or "stalking" as defined in 34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(30).

Sexually oriented words and actions which tend to annoy, alarm or be physically or verbally abusive toward another person and which serve no legitimate or valid purpose regardless of the intent of the person accused of the sexually harassing conduct, constitutes sexual harassment. Not all harassment falls within the definition of sexual harassment (i.e., harassment that is of a sexual nature). Other laws, regulations and policies also prohibit inappropriate conduct and provide a means for addressing inappropriate conduct should it occur.

Sexual harassment is a specific type of harassment which is prohibited under this policy. Examples of sexual harassment include, but are not limited to:

- Unwelcome sexual flirtations, advances or propositions;
- Verbal comments, jokes, or abuse of a sexual nature;
- Graphic verbal comments about an individual's body;
- Sexually degrading words used to describe an individual;
- Displaying pornographic material;
- Physical contact or language of a sexually suggestive nature.

B. <u>Other definitions</u>. Other definitions applicable to these Regulations are the definitions as set forth in Policy ACAA, Sexual Harassment, Section V.

### **SECTION 3 - Sexual Harassment Reporting Procedure**

Any person may report sexual harassment (whether or not the person reporting is the person alleged to be the victim of conduct that could constitute sex discrimination or sexual harassment), in person, by mail, by telephone, or by electronic mail, using the contact information listed for the Title IX Coordinator, or by any other means that results in the Title IX Coordinator receiving the person's verbal or written report. Such a report may be made at any time (including during non-business hours) by using the telephone number or electronic mail address, or by mail to the office address, listed for the Title IX Coordinator.

Any student who believes that he or she has been or is being subjected to sexual harassment or has reason to suspect another person has been or is being subjected to sexual harassment may also report it to a teacher, guidance counselor, or school administrator. The report may be made verbally or in writing.

The written complaint or Sexual Harassment - Complaint Report Form, ACAA-E(1), must include the following:

- the date the written Complaint was filed or the Sexual Harassment Complaint Report Form was completed,
- the school employee receiving the Complaint (if applicable),
- the name of the person reporting the sexual harassment,
- the address/phone # of the person reporting the sexual harassment,
- the specific conduct or nature of the sexual harassment complaint including the person(s) alleged to have sexually harassed the complaining party or another person, the date(s) and location where the conduct occurred, witnesses, etc.,
- the date the school employee completed the form (if applicable),
- the date and signature of the person reporting the sexual harassment .

If the signed written complaint was given to a teacher, guidance counselor or administrator, or if the Sexual Harassment - Complaint Report Form was completed by a teacher, guidance counselor or administrator, the teacher, guidance counselor or administrator shall forward the complaint or Sexual Harassment - Complaint Report Form to the Title IX Coordinator.

Regardless of whether or not a formal complaint is filed, should the District have actual knowledge of sexual harassment in a District educational program or activity against another person in the United States, the District shall respond promptly in a manner that is not deliberately indifferent (i.e., if the District's response to sexual harassment is clearly unreasonable in light of the known circumstances).

#### **SECTION 4 - Retaliation Prohibited**

- A. Neither the District or other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce, or discriminate against any individual for the purpose of interfering with any right or privilege secured by Title IX or this policy, or because the individual has made a report or complaint, testified, assisted, or participated or refused to participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under this policy.
- B. The prohibition against retaliation related to a sexual harassment complaint is set forth in full in Policy ACAA, Sexual Harassment, Section XIII, and by this reference incorporated herein as if set forth in full.

#### SECTION 5 - Procedure for Addressing Sexual Harassment Complaints

- A. General Provisions.
  - 1. The Title IX Coordinator shall promptly contact the complainant to discuss the availability of supportive measures (see Policy ACAA, V(m)) and consider the complainant's wishes with respect to supportive measures, inform the complainant of the availability of supportive measures with or without the filing of a formal complaint, and explain to the complainant the process for filing a formal complaint.

- 2. The timeframes set forth in these regulations shall be considered as a maximum length of time within which the related step is to be completed, however, the time frame may be within which the District is required to complete a step may be extended for good cause upon written notice to the complainant and the respondent of the delay or extension and the reasons for the action. Good cause includes, but is not limited to, utilization of the informal resolution process, availability of an investigator if not a school employee, complexity of the investigation, absence of a party, a party's advisor, a witness, or decision-maker (including a person necessary for addressing an appeal), concurrent law enforcement activity, or the need for language assistance or accommodation of disabilities;
- 3. Nothing in the policy or these regulations prohibit the District from removing a respondent from the District's education program or activity on an emergency basis, provided that the District undertakes an individualized safety and risk analysis, determines that an immediate threat to the physical health or safety of any student or other individual arising from the allegations of sexual harassment justifies removal, and provides the respondent with notice and an opportunity to challenge the decision immediately following the removal, however, nothing in the policy or regulations may be construed to modify any rights under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, or the Americans with Disabilities Act. Additionally, nothing in the policy or regulations prohibits the District from placing an employee respondent on administrative leave during the pendency of a grievance process, however, nothing in the policy or regulations may be construed to modify any rights under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 or the Americans with Disabilities Act.

#### B. Confidentiality

- The District shall keep confidential the identity of any individual who has made a report or complaint of sex discrimination, including any individual who has made a report or filed a formal complaint of sexual harassment, any complainant, any individual who has been reported to be the perpetrator of sex discrimination, any respondent, and any witness, except as may be permitted by Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), or as required by law, or to carry out the purposes of Title IX (34 CFR part 106), including the conduct of any investigation, hearing, or judicial proceeding arising thereunder.
- 2. The District shall maintain as confidential any supportive measures provided to the complainant or respondent, to the extent that maintaining such confidentiality would not impair the ability of the District to provide the supportive measures.
- C. Informal Resolution:
  - The District may not require as a condition of enrollment or continuing enrollment, or employment or continuing employment, or enjoyment of any other right, waiver of the right to an investigation and adjudication of formal complaints of sexual harassment consistent with this policy, may not require the parties to participate in an informal resolution process under this policy, and may not offer an informal resolution process unless a formal complaint is filed.
  - 2. Policy ACAA, Sexual Harassment, Section VII, is the section explaining informal resolution and by this reference incorporated herein as if set forth in full.

#### D. Formal Complaint:

- 1. Upon receipt of a formal complaint, the Title IX Coordinator shall provide the following written notice to the parties who are known:
  - a. Notice of the District's grievance process, including any informal resolution process.
  - b. Notice of the allegations of sexual harassment potentially constituting sexual harassment as

defined in this policy, including sufficient details known at the time and with sufficient time to prepare a response before any initial interview. Sufficient details include the identities of the parties involved in the incident, if known, the conduct allegedly constituting sexual harassment, and the date and location of the alleged incident, if known. The written notice must include a statement that the respondent is presumed not responsible for the alleged conduct and that a determination regarding responsibility is made at the conclusion of the grievance process. The written notice shall inform the parties that they may have an advisor of their choice, who may be, but is not required to be, an attorney, and may inspect and review evidence. The written notice shall inform the parties of any provision in the District's code of conduct that prohibits knowingly making false statements or knowingly submitting false information during the grievance process.

- 2. The District shall treat complainants and respondents equitably by providing remedies to a complainant where a determination of responsibility for sexual harassment has been made against the respondent. Remedies may be disciplinary in nature. Such remedies may include the same individualized services identified as supportive measures. Remedies must be designed to restore or preserve equal access to the District's education program or activity.
- 3. The District shall follow the grievance process before the imposition of any disciplinary sanctions or other actions that are not supportive measures against a respondent.

#### E. Investigation of a Formal Complaint

- The District must investigate the allegations in a formal complaint. If the conduct alleged in the formal complaint would not constitute sexual harassment as defined in this policy even if proved, did not occur in the District's education program or activity, or did not occur against a person in the United States, then the District must dismiss the formal complaint with regard to that does not preclude action under another provision of the District's code of conduct.
- 2. Unless the nature of the complaint and investigation dictate otherwise, the Investigation should be completed within sixty (60) calendar days of receipt of the complaint.
- 3. When investigating a formal complaint and throughout the grievance process, the District:
  - a. shall have the burden of proof and the burden of gathering evidence sufficient to reach a determination regarding responsibility;
  - b. shall provide an equal opportunity for the parties to present witnesses, including fact and expert witnesses, and other inculpatory and exculpatory evidence;
  - c. shall not restrict the ability of either party to discuss the allegations under investigation or to gather and present relevant evidence, provided, however, nothing in this provision prohibits the District from taking disciplinary action due to a party retaliating against any person due to that person having made a report or complaint, testified, assisted, or participated or refused to participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under this policy;
  - d. shall provide the parties with the same opportunities to have others present during any grievance proceeding, including the opportunity to be accompanied to any related meeting or proceeding by the advisor of their choice, who may be, but is not required to be, an attorney, and not limit the choice or presence of advisor for either the complainant or respondent in any meeting or grievance proceeding; however, the District may establish restrictions regarding the extent to which the advisor may participate in the proceedings, as long as the restrictions apply equally to both parties.
- 4. If, in the course of an investigation, the District decides to investigate allegations about the complainant or respondent that are not included in the notice provided pursuant to provision D.1., the District shall provide notice of the additional allegations to the parties whose identities are known.
- 5. Any party whose participation is invited or expected, shall be given written notice of the date, time, location, participants, and purpose of all hearings, investigative interviews, or other meetings, with

sufficient time for the party to prepare to participate.

- 6. All parties shall have equal opportunity to inspect and review any evidence obtained as part of the investigation that is directly related to the allegations raised in a formal complaint, including the evidence upon which the recipient does not intend to rely in reaching a determination regarding responsibility and inculpatory or exculpatory evidence whether obtained from a party or other source, so that each party can meaningfully respond to the evidence prior to conclusion of the investigation.
- 7. Prior to completion of the investigative report, the District must send to each party and the party's advisor, if any, the evidence subject to inspection and review in an electronic format or a hard copy, and the parties must have at least ten (10) calendar days to submit a written response, which the investigator will consider prior to completion of the investigative report. The District shall make all such evidence subject to the parties' inspection and review available at any hearing to give each party equal opportunity to refer to such evidence during the hearing, including for purposes of cross-examination.
- 8. The investigator shall create an investigative report that fairly summarizes relevant evidence and, at least ten (10) calendar days prior to a determination by a decision-maker regarding responsibility, send to each party and the party's advisor, if any, the investigative report in an electronic format or a hard copy, for their review and written response.

#### F. Determination

- 1. The decision-maker shall not be the same person as the Title IX Coordinator or investigator(s).
- 2. After the Investigator has sent the investigative report to the parties, and before reaching a determination regarding responsibility, the decision-maker must afford each party the opportunity to submit written, relevant questions that a party wants asked of any party or witness, provide each party with the answers, and allow for additional, limited follow-up questions from each party. All parties shall have ten (10) calendar days from the date the investigatory report was sent to the parties to submit written, relevant questions to the decision-maker, who shall forward the questions to the other party following the ten (10) period, unless all parties submitted questions prior to the end of the ten (10) day period and in such case the decision-maker shall forward the questions upon receipt of questions by all parties. All parties shall have (5) calendar days to submit to the decision-maker and the other parties any written responses to the questions.
- 3. The decision-maker shall have fourteen (14) calendar days, after the expiration of time frame set forth in E.8. above, to issue a written determination as to the complaint.
- 4. The decision-maker shall not conduct an adversarial hearing unless the Board conducts a hearing following an appeal of the Superintendent's decision to the Board, or following the Superintendent's recommendation to the Board that a student determined to have sexually harassed another person be suspended long-term or expelled or recommend to the Board that an employee determined to having sexually harassed another person be suspended without pay or the person's employment with the District be terminated.
- 5. Standard of evidence. For all formal complaints of sexual harassment filed against students and employees, the standard of evidence to be used to determine responsibility is the preponderance of the evidence standard.
- 6. Upon recommendation of a decision-maker, on following an appeal of the decision-maker's determination, the Superintendent may make a recommendation to the Board that a student determined to have sexually harassed another person be suspended long-term or expelled (ARSD 24:07:01:01). The Superintendent may also make a recommendation to the Board that an employee determined to having sexually harassed another person be suspended without pay or the person's employment with the District be terminated. Should either recommendation be given by the Superintendent, a formal adversarial hearing shall be held before the Board.
- 7. Disciplinary sanctions. Following any determination of responsibility the District may implement disciplinary sanctions and remedies that include, but are not limited to:
  - a. if a student:

- i. loss of privileges;
- ii. detention;
- iii. in-school suspension;
- iv. long-term suspension;
- v. expulsion.
- b. if an employee
  - i. written reprimand;
  - ii. written plan of improvement, which may include directive to obtain training related sexual harassment and the prohibition against sexual harassment;
  - iii. suspension without pay;
  - iv. termination of employment.
- c. if a guest or vendor
  - i. restrict access to school property;
  - ii. deny access to school property.
- 8. The decision-maker must issue a written determination regarding responsibility. To reach this determination, the decision-make shall apply the preponderance of evidence standard of evidence.
- 9. The written determination shall include:
  - a. identification of the allegations potentially constituting sexual harassment;
  - b. a description of the procedural steps taken from the receipt of the formal complaint through the determination, including any notifications to the parties, interviews with parties and witnesses, site visits, methods used to gather other evidence, and hearings held;
  - c. findings of fact supporting the determination;
  - d. conclusions regarding the application of the District's code of conduct to the facts;
  - e. a statement of, and rationale for, the result as to each allegation, including a determination regarding responsibility, any disciplinary sanctions the District imposes on the respondent, and whether remedies designed to restore or preserve equal access to the recipient's education program or activity will be provided by the District to the complainant; and
  - f. the District's procedures and permissible bases for the complainant and respondent to appeal.
- 10. The District shall provide the written determination to the parties simultaneously.
- 11. The determination regarding responsibility becomes final either on the date that the recipient provides the parties with the written determination of the result of the appeal, if an appeal is filed, or if an appeal is not filed, the date on which an appeal would no longer be considered timely.

### G. Appeal

- 1. Both parties have the right to appeal to the Board the Superintendent's determination regarding responsibility, and from a dismissal of a formal complaint or any allegations therein, on the following bases:
  - a. Procedural irregularity that affected the outcome of the matter;
  - b. New evidence that was not reasonably available at the time the determination regarding responsibility or dismissal was made, that could affect the outcome of the matter; and
  - c. The Title IX Coordinator, investigator(s), or decision-maker(s) had a conflict of interest or bias for or against complainants or respondents generally or the individual complainant or respondent that affected the outcome of the matter.
- 2. As to all appeals, the Title IX Coordinator shall:
  - a. notify the other party in writing when an appeal is filed and implement appeal procedures equally for both parties;
  - b. ensure that the decision-maker(s) for the appeal is not the same person as the decision-maker(s) that reached the determination regarding responsibility or dismissal, the investigator(s), or the Title

IX Coordinator;

- c. ensure that the decision-maker(s) for the appeal complies with the standard of evidence as required in this policy;
- d. give both parties a reasonable, equal opportunity to submit a written statement in support of, or challenging, the outcome;
- e. ensure that a written decision is issued describing the result of the appeal and the rationale for the result, and provide the written decision simultaneously to both parties.
- 3. Appeal to the Superintendent. The following procedure shall be used to address an appeal of the decision-maker's determination to the Superintendent:
  - a. If a party is not satisfied with the decision-maker's determination, or if the decision-maker's determination does not without good cause render a written decision within fourteen (14) calendar days of the expiration of time frame set forth in E.8., that party may appeal to the Superintendent by filing form ACAA-E(2), Sexual Harassment Complaint Appeal to the Superintendent. The appeal must be filed within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the decision-maker's written decision, or ten (10) days of the deadline for the decision-maker's written decision, whichever comes first. The appealing party must attach the decision-maker's written determination.
  - b. Within fourteen (14) calendar days from the date the appeal was filed, the Superintendent shall render a decision in writing. All parties shall receive copies of the decision. The Superintendent shall uphold, reverse, modify the decision-maker's decision, or the Superintendent may refer the matter back to the decision-maker for further investigation and supplemental decision which decision may restate, modify or reverse the decision-maker's initial decision. A supplemental decision by the decision-maker after a referral back to the decision-maker may be appealed to the Superintendent.
- 4. Appeal to the School Board. If a party is not satisfied with the Superintendent's decision, or if the Superintendent does not without good cause render a written decision within fourteen (14) calendar days of the receipt of the appeal, that party may appeal to the School Board by filing with the Business Manager using Form ACAA-E(3), Sexual Harassment Complaint Appeal to the School Board, within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the Superintendent's written decision, or ten (10) days of the deadline for the Superintendent's written decision, whichever comes first. The appeal shall be in writing and the appealing party must attach to the appeal the decision-maker's written decision, the appeal to the Superintendent, and the Superintendent's written decision or notice of the Superintendent's failure to render a written decision.

The following procedure shall be used by the Board to address an appeal of the Superintendent's decision on the merits related to a sexual harassment complaint:

- 1. Upon receipt by the Board President/Chairperson of an appeal by the Complainant, a copy of the appeal shall be given to the person alleged to have violated the sexual harassment policy;
- 2. Upon receipt of an appeal, the Board shall at its next meeting schedule a date, time and location for the appeal hearing.
- 3. The following procedure shall be applicable at the appeal hearing before the Board:
  - A. The Board shall appoint a board member or a person who is not an employee of the school district as the hearing officer;
  - B. Within thirty (30) calendar days of an appeal being filed with the Board, the Board shall conduct a hearing in executive session;
  - C. The Complainant, person alleged to have violated the sexual harassment policy, and Superintendent each have the right to be represented at the hearing;
  - D. The Board shall make a verbatim record of the hearing by means of an electronic or

mechanical device or by court reporter. This record and any exhibits must be sealed and must remain with the hearing officer until the appeal process has been completed;

- E. The issue on appeal is whether the Superintendent's decision should be upheld, reversed or modified;
- F. All parties shall be given the opportunity to make an opening statement, with the appealing party being given the first opportunity, followed by the other party, and then the Superintendent;
- G. The appealing party shall present his or her case first, and the other party shall then present his or her case. Both parties shall have the opportunity to ask questions of the other's witnesses. The hearing officer and board members may ask questions of any witness;
- H. The Superintendent shall present the basis of his/her decision which led to the appeal. Both parties shall have the opportunity to ask the Superintendent questions. The hearing officer and board members may also ask questions of the Superintendent;
- Unless a witness is a party to the appeal, witnesses may be present only when testifying unless the hearing officer rules otherwise. All witnesses must take an oath or affirmation administered by the School Board president, hearing officer or other person authorized by law to take oaths and affirmations;
- J. The hearing officer shall admit all relevant evidence. The hearing officer may limit unproductive or repetitious evidence. The strict rules of evidence do not apply. Moran v. Rapid City Area School Dist., 281 N.W.2d 595. 602 (S.D. 1979).
- K. All parties shall be given the opportunity to make a closing statement, with the appealing party having the first opportunity, followed by the other party, and then the Superintendent. The appealing party shall be given the opportunity for a brief rebuttal;
- L. After the evidentiary hearing, the Board shall continue to meet in executive session for deliberations. No one other than the hearing officer may meet with the Board during deliberations. The Board may seek advice during deliberation from an attorney who has not represented any of the parties to the hearing. Consultation with any other person during deliberation may occur only if a representative of both parties and Superintendent are present. The Board may, in its sole discretion, continue the proceedings and make a final decision on the appeal at a later date. Within twenty (20) calendar days of the hearing, the Board shall render its decision and issue its written Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decision. The time frame for rendering a decision may be extended by the Board President for good cause and upon written notification to both parties and the Superintendent, and the notification shall identify the reason for the extension and the date on or before which the decision shall be rendered;
- M. The decision of the School Board must be based solely on the evidence presented at the hearing and must be formalized by a motion made in open meeting. The Board will convene in open session and a motion to uphold, reverse, or modify the Superintendent's decision shall be made and voted upon. Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decision, consistent with the Board motion shall be in writing and approved by the Board. Both parties, the decision-maker and the Superintendent will receive copies after the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decision and proved by the Board.
- N. Following the Board hearing, should the Board determine there has been a violation of this policy prohibiting sexual harassment, Board action may include but is not limited to the following: (1) suspend or expel a student from any or all school programs, including but not limited to classes, extracurricular activities, or attendance at school activities; (2) pursuant to statute, reprimand, suspend without pay, or terminate the contract of an employee, or (3) prohibit a third person from being on school property or at school activities for such time as may be determined by the Board.

O. If either party is dissatisfied with the Board's decision, that party may appeal the decision by filing an appeal pursuant to law.

#### **SECTION 6 - Miscellaneous**

- A. Consolidation of formal complaints. The District may consolidate formal complaints as to allegations of sexual harassment against more than one respondent, or by more than one complainant against one or more respondents, or by one party against the other party, where the allegations of sexual harassment arise out of the same facts or circumstances. Where a grievance process involves more than one complainant or more than one respondent, references in this section to the singular "party," "complainant," or "respondent" include the plural, as applicable.
- B. Dismissal of Complaint:
  - 1. The District may dismiss the formal complaint or any allegations therein, if at any time during the investigation or hearing:
    - a. a complainant notifies the Title IX Coordinator in writing that the complainant would like to withdraw the formal complaint or any allegations therein;
    - b. the respondent is no longer enrolled in or employed by the District; or specific circumstances prevent the District from gathering evidence sufficient to reach a determination as to the formal complaint or allegations therein.
  - 2. Upon a dismissal required or permitted pursuant to B.1. above, the District shall promptly send written notice of the dismissal and reason(s) therefor simultaneously to the parties.
  - 3. Any party whose participation is invited or expected, shall be given written notice of the date, time, location, participants, and purpose of all hearings, investigative interviews, or other meetings, with sufficient time for the party to prepare to participate.
  - 4. Both parties shall have equal opportunity to inspect and review any evidence obtained as part of the investigation that is directly related to the allegations raised in a formal complaint, including the evidence upon which the recipient does not intend to rely in reaching a determination regarding responsibility and inculpatory or exculpatory evidence whether obtained from a party or other source, so that each party can meaningfully respond to the evidence prior to conclusion of the investigation.

### Policy KL: COMPLAINT AGAINST SCHOOL EMPLOYEE

Status: DRAFT - 1st Reading

Original Adopted Date: Pending | Last Reviewed Date: 02/02/2023

It is the belief of the School Board that complaints may arise as the result of a misunderstanding which could be resolved through the mutual efforts of the person having the complaint and the employee involved. For that reason, efforts should be made by all parties involved to resolve the complaint at the lowest procedural level. It is only in those situations when the complaint cannot be resolved that the Board should be involved.

The purpose of this policy is to outline a procedure for addressing parent/student/public complaints about an employee's conduct, performance, or an employee's administration of a curricular, cocurricular or extra-curricular program. *Complaints related to sexual harassment, bullying, and instructional and library materials are addressed through other School District policies and not through this policy.* 

When a complaint against a school employee is brought directly to an individual board member or the entire Board, the board member or entire Board may listen to the person's complaint but shall take no action unless there has been compliance with this Policy. The person bringing the complaint will be directed to the procedure as set forth below. The following procedure is designed to ensure the proper balance in protecting the rights of the person(s) bringing the complaint and the rights of the person against whom the complaint is made. It is only when the person having the complaint and the employee involved cannot resolve the problem, and the complaint cannot be resolved at the administrative level, will the Board and board members become involved.

#### COMPLAINT PROCEDURE

#### **STEP 1:** Initial Complaint

- **A.** The person having a complaint ("Complainant") must initiate the complaint procedure within thirty (30) calendar days from the date the Complainant knew or should have known of the conduct of the Employee giving rise to the complaint. The person having the complaint related to a school employee must initiate the complaint procedure in one of the following ways:
  - meet and discuss the concern with the Employee involved; OR
  - meet and discuss the concern with the Employee's Principal.
  - If the Complainant met with the Employee and the complaint was not resolved, the Complainant must meet and discuss the complaint with the Employee's Principal within ten (10) calendar days of the meeting with the Employee. The Principal shall complete a Complaint Form, Exhibit KL-E(1). The Complainant shall sign and date the Complaint Form verifying the accuracy of its content.
  - 2. If the Complainant initiates the complaint by meeting the Principal, the Principal shall complete a Complaint Form, Exhibit KL-E(1). The Complainant shall sign and date the Complaint Form verifying the accuracy of its contents.
- **B.** Upon the Complaint Form being signed and dated by the Complainant, the Principal shall give a copy of the complaint to the Employee and schedule an informal meeting with only the Complainant, Employee and Principal present. At the meeting, the Principal shall attempt to facilitate discussion between the Complainant and Employee by seeking clarification of the issue(s) and seeking a resolution to the complaint. Should a resolution be obtained, the resolution shall be noted on the Complaint Form. Should a resolution not be obtained, the Complainant and/or the Employee may request a decision by the Principal on the merits of the complaint by making the request on the Complaint Form.
- **C.** If the Principal is asked to make a decision on the merits of the complaint, the Principal has the authority to investigate the complaint beyond the information received from the Complainant and Employee during the meeting with the Complainant, Employee and Principal. The Principal shall render a decision in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days of the request for a

decision on the merits of the complaint. The time frame for rendering a decision by the Principal may be extended by the Principal for good cause and upon written notification to the Complainant and Employee, which notification shall identify the reason for the extension and the date on or before which the decision shall be rendered. The Complainant and the Employee shall receive written notification of the Principal's determination/resolution.

D. The Principal's decision may be appealed by the Complainant or Employee to the Superintendent within (10) ten calendar days of receipt of the Principal's written decision pursuant to Step 2. If the Principal does not render a written decision within the required time frame (14 days unless extended) the Complainant or Employee may appeal to the Superintendent pursuant to Step 2.

Should the complaint be against a Principal, the Superintendent shall address the complaint through the procedure set forth in Step 1. An appeal by the Complainant pursuant to Step 1D may be filed with the School Board pursuant to Step 3.

Should the complaint be against the Superintendent (or the Principal who also is the Superintendent) the Complaint Form, Exhibit KL-E(1), shall be given to the Business Manager. The Business Manager shall give the Complaint Form to the School Board President or Chairperson. At the next School Board meeting, the School Board will designate a person who is not an Employee of the District to address the complaint through the procedure set forth in Step 1. An appeal by the Complainant pursuant to Step 1D may be filed with the School Board pursuant to Step 3.

## STEP 2: Appeal to the Superintendent

The following procedure shall be used to address an appeal of the Principal's decision made in Step 1, or if the Principal failed to render a decision in the required time frame:

- A. The appeal shall be in writing using Exhibit KL-E(2). The appealing party must attach the Complaint and the Principal's written decision, if a decision was rendered.
- B. Upon receipt of an appeal, the Superintendent will provide a copy of the appeal to the other party. Within five (5) calendar days, the other party may submit a written response to the appeal. The Superintendent shall provide a copy of the response to the appealing party.
- C. In the Superintendent's sole discretion, the Superintendent may (a) meet and discuss the matter with the Complainant and Employee, (b) meet and discuss the matter with the Complainant, Employee and Principal, or (c) meet and discuss the matter with the Principal.
- D. Within fourteen (14) calendar days from the date the appeal was filed with the Superintendent, the Superintendent shall render a decision in writing. The time frame for rendering a decision by the Superintendent may be extended by the Superintendent for good cause and upon written notification to the Complainant and Employee; the notification shall identify the reason for the extension and the date on or before which the decision shall be rendered. The Complainant, Employee and Principal shall receive copies of the decision. The Superintendent may uphold, reverse or modify the Principal's decision. The Superintendent may also refer the matter back to the Principal for further investigation. The Principal may uphold, modify or reverse his or her initial decision. After a matter has been referred back to the Principal, and the Principal rendered a second decision, that decision may also be appealed to the Superintendent.
- E. The Superintendent's decision may be appealed by the Complainant to the School Board within (10) ten calendar days of receipt of the Superintendent's written decision pursuant to Step 3. If the Superintendent does not render a written decision within the required time frame (14 calendar days unless extended) the Complainant may appeal to the School Board pursuant to Step 3.
- F. If the Employee believes the Superintendent's decision constitutes a violation, misinterpretation or inequitable application of School Board policy or collective bargaining agreement applicable to the Employee, the Employee may file a grievance pursuant to the applicable grievance policy. A grievance filed pursuant to this provision shall be initiated at the Superintendent level.

### STEP 3: Complainant's Appeal to the School Board

The following procedure shall be used to address an appeal of the Superintendent's decision made in Step 2, or if the Superintendent failed to render a decision in the required time frame:

- A. An appeal to the School Board shall be in writing using Exhibit KL-E(3). The Complainant must attach the complaint, the Principal's written decision if a decision was rendered, the appeal to the Superintendent, the response to the appeal if any, and the Superintendent's decision if one was rendered.
- B. The appeal must be filed with the President/Chairperson of the School Board or Business Manager within ten (10) calendar days of Complainant's receipt of the Superintendent's written decision, or within ten (10) days of the deadline for the Superintendent's written decision, whichever comes first.
- C. Upon receipt by the Board President/Chairperson of an appeal by the Complainant, a copy of the appeal shall be given to the employee involved.
- D. Upon receipt of an appeal to the School Board, the School Board shall at its next meeting schedule a date, time and location for the appeal hearing.
- E. The following procedure shall be applicable at the appeal hearing before the School Board:
  - 1. The School Board shall appoint a school board member or a person who is not an employee of the school district as the hearing officer.
  - 2. Within thirty (30) calendar days of an appeal being filed with the School Board, the School Board shall conduct a hearing in executive session.
  - 3. The Complainant, Employee and Superintendent each have the right to be represented at the hearing.
  - 4. The School Board shall make a verbatim record of the hearing by means of an electronic device or a court reporter. This record and any exhibits must be sealed and must remain with the hearing officer until the appeal process has been completed.
  - 5. The issue on appeal is whether the Superintendent's decision should be upheld, reversed or modified by the School Board; in the absence of a decision by the Superintendent, the School Board will make a decision on the merits of the Complaint.
  - 6. All parties shall be given the opportunity to make an opening statement, with the Complainant being given the first opportunity, followed by the Employee and then the Superintendent.
  - The Complainant shall present his or her case first, and the Employee shall then present his or her case. Both parties shall have the opportunity to ask questions of the other's witnesses. The hearing officer and school board members may ask questions of any witness.
  - 8. After the Complainant and the Employee have presented their respective cases, the Superintendent shall then present the basis of his/her decision which led to the appeal, if a decision was rendered. The Complainant and Employee shall have the opportunity to ask the Superintendent questions. The hearing officer and board members may also ask questions of the Superintendent.
  - 9. Unless a witness is a party to the appeal, witnesses may be present only when testifying unless the Hearing Officer rules otherwise. All witnesses must take an oath or affirmation administered by the School Board President/ Chairperson, Hearing Officer or other person authorized by law to take oaths and affirmations.
  - 10. The Hearing Officer shall admit all relevant evidence. The Hearing Officer may limit unproductive or repetitious evidence. The strict rules of evidence do not apply. Moran v. Rapid City Area School Dist., 281 N.W.2d 595. 602 (S.D. 1979) ("This [school board hearing related to teacher contract nonrenewal] does not mandate nor necessitate the

use of strict evidentiary rules.").

- 11. Both parties shall be given the opportunity to make a closing statement, with the Complainant having the first opportunity, followed by the Employee, and then the Superintendent. The Complainant shall be given the opportunity for a brief rebuttal.
- 12. After the evidentiary hearing, the School Board shall continue to meet in executive session for deliberations. No one other than the Hearing Officer may meet with the Board during deliberations. During deliberations, the Board may seek advice from an attorney who did not represent any of the parties in the hearing. Consultation with any other person during deliberation may occur only if a representative of the Complainant, Employee and Superintendent are present. The Board may, in its sole discretion, continue the proceedings and make a final decision on the appeal at a later date.
- 13. Within twenty (20) calendar days of the hearing, the School Board shall render its decision and issue its written Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decision. The time frame for rendering a decision may be extended by the Board President for good cause and upon written notification to the Complainant, Employee and Superintendent. The notification shall identify the reason for the extension and the date on or before which the decision shall be rendered.
- 14. The decision of the School Board must be based solely on the evidence presented at the hearing and must be formalized by a motion made in open meeting. The Board will reconvene in open session. The Board may uphold, reverse, or modify the Superintendent's decision, or render a decision on the merits of the Complaint in the absence of a Superintendent's decision. Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decision, consistent with the Board motion, shall be in writing and approved by the Board. The Complainant, Employee, Principal and Superintendent will receive copies after the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decision are approved by the School Board.
- 15. If the Complainant is dissatisfied with the School Board's decision, the Complainant may appeal the decision by filing an appeal to the circuit court pursuant to SDCL Ch. 13-46.